Tehama County Continuum of Care
Executive Council Meeting

October 8, 2025
Agenda

1. Welcome and Introductions

2. Adoption of Meeting Minutes
Meeting minutes for consideration: Regular Meeting held August 13, 2025

3. Additions to the Agenda
4. Project Updates:

PATH Plaza - PATH

Permanent Housing - Travis Lyon

Stakeholders’ Collaborative - Heather Henderson
Rural Indoor Objective (RIO) - Andrea Curry

e. HMIS/CES

a0 yua

5. CoC Coordination and Strategic Planning
Andrea Curry

a. Financial Report

6. Capacity Building
Andrea Curry

a. Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) Round é Update

b. Tehama ESG+ RFP Awards Review

Agenda items shown in blue correspond to attachments/handouts included in Agenda Packet and/or links
fo additional information. Underlined blue text represents live hyperlinks.


https://bcsh.ca.gov/calich/hhap_program.html

Tehama County Continuum of Care
Executive Council Meeting

Meeting Minutes
August 13, 2025

Meeting held via Zoom

COUNCIL ATTENDANCE: PRESENT = EXCUSED
Johnna Jones, Chairperson X
Jayme Bottke, Tehama County Health Services Agency X
Travis Lyon, Tehama County Health Services Agency (Alternate)
Kris Deiters, Red Bluff City Council X
Colleen Lewis, Poor and the Homeless Tehama County Coalition (PATH)
Michael Glackler, PATH (Alternate)
Gail Locke, General Collaborative Chairperson X
Pati Nolen, Tehama County Board of Supervisors X
Robert Burroughs, Tehama County Board of Supervisors (Alternate)
Kimberlee Monroe, Empower Tehama X
Honey Touvell, Tehama County Community Action Agency X

CoC Staff: Andrea C. Curry, CoC Coordinator; Heather Henderson, Adriana De La Torre, Lowell Fletcher

Notes by: Heather Henderson and Adriana De La Torre
Meeting called to order at 1:30 P.M.

1. Welcome and Introductions

2. Adoption of Meeting Minutes

The minutes and agenda from the Executive Council meeting held on June 11, 2025 were made
available prior to this meeting for review. No changes were requested. A motion to accept the

minutes was made by Kris and seconded by Pati. Motion passed.

3. Additions to the Agenda

None presented af the time this agenda item was addressed, however, at the end of the meeting
Pati suggested that the Council discuss rent stabilization for mobilehome parks. That discussion is

noted in these minutes as ltem 7.a.
4. Project Updates:
a. PATH Plaza Update

No one from PATH was able to attend this meeting, so Andrea gave a short report based
on information reported at other meetings. PATH staff increased outreach to Dog Island
Park ahead of the date in July by which residents had been told to vacate the park. Some
accepted offers of shelter, but not as many as PATH had hoped. PATH continues to
prioritize residents from the park for shelter beds, and Street Outreach is working on re-
establishing contact with those who have moved to other unsheltered situations. Gail
mentioned that Jimmy reported at the CoC General Collaborative meeting that PATH



Plaza currently has space in both shelter dorms since some people recently moved to
Transitional Housing.

b. Permanent Housing Update
Travis Lyon

Travis reported that there is one new move-in at Olive Grove and another one in process.
He mentioned that a couple of the non-NPLH units are currently vacant and will be filled
through RCHDC's process. One of the Red BIuff projects, The Bluffs, recently submitted an
application to the Homekey+ funding program but has not head back on it yet. The other
Red Bluff project, Palm Villas, has been awarded tax credits and is currently seeking
investors.

c. Stakeholders’ Collaborative
Heather Henderson

Heather reported that the last meeting was held on August 6. Andrea presented on the

HHAP 6 Regionally Coordinated Homeless Action Plan, which was developed with input

and feedback from the HHSC at its May 2025 meeting, the Community Conversations on
Homelessness Solutions held in the evening on June 30, and other small group meetings.

The next meeting will be held on November 5.

d. Rural Indoor Objective (RIO)

Andrea went over the RIO Cumulative Report for July 2025, which was included in the
agenda packet for this meeting. Andrea noted that the significant jump in the number of
individuals in permanent housing is a result of the HMIS report being updated to reflect all
household members in households that are in housing but sfill enrolled in RRH. The prior
version of the report was only able to count the heads of those households.

e. HMIS/CES Update

Lowell Fletcher, HMIS Administrator, was present at this meeting. Andrea and Lowell
reported that the CoC will soon be implementing efforts to keep CES assessments more
up-to-date now that Lowell is with the CoC full-time.

CoC Coordination and Strategic Planning
Andrea Curry

a. Financial Report

Andrea provided an update on the grant funding being administered by the CoC through
its Administrative Entity and currently open subgrants as of July 2025.

Capacity Building
Andrea Curry

a. Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) Round é

HHAP-6 Regionally Coordinated Homelessness Action Plan and HHAP-6
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)

HHAP is a formula grant program administered through the California State Department of
Housing and Community Development (HCD). The program focuses on the homelessness
response system, in particular permanent and interim housing solutions. Tehama County
(County) and the Tehama County Continuum of Care (CoC) are the HHAP-6 eligible
applicants.

To apply for the funding, the CoC and County developed the required Regionally
Coordinated Homelessness Action Plan (Plan) and Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).
HCD provided a template that constitutes the Plan. Regional Partners’ Roles and
Responsibilities and System Performance Measures Improvement Plan. The Plan was



developed with feedback and input provided by stakeholders in three public meetings
and several additional small group meetings.

The MOU delegates the County of Tehama’s HHAP-6 funds to the Tehama County
Continuum of Care. Both the Plan and the MOU, into which the Plan is incorporated by
reference, are being presented to the Executive Council for approval today and will be
presented to the Tehama County Board of Supervisors for approval on August 19. Once
approved, CoC staff will submit the HHAP-6 application, including the Plan and MOU, to
HCD on or before the submission deadline of August 29, 2025.

Motion: A motion was made to approve and adopt of the Regionally Coordinated
Homelessness Action Plan (Plan), which is a requirement of the Homeless Housing,
Assistance and Prevention Round é (HHAP-6) grant program, and to authorize the
Executive Council Chairperson to sign the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
between the County of Tehama, the Tehama County Continuum of Care, and The Vitality
Project, as the Administrative Entity for the Continuum of Care regarding the HHAP-6 grant
program.

Moved by: Gail Locke

Seconded by: Kris Deiters

Ayes: Kris Deiters, Johnna Jones, Colleen Lewis, Gail Locke, Travis Lyon, Pati Nolen, Honey
Touvell

Noes: None

Abstentions: None

Result: APPROVED

TCDE Practical Supports for Homeless Students

Tehama County Department of Education’s current Education for Homeless Children and
Youth (EHCY) program serves all 13 school districts by providing a wide array of services
that support students experiencing homelessness and their families. From 2021-2023, TCDE
had access to one-time funding through the American Rescue Plan-Homeless Children
and Youth (ARP-HCY) program that supported this intervention. In December of 2023,
Tehama CoC approved an award of $25,000 to EHCY to support ongoing provision of
these crucial services. To date, as EHCY staff report in the lefter provided to the council as
part of the Agenda Packet, approximately 85% of the funds made available through this
award have been utilized by EHCY to support at least 190 individual students across the 13
districts served by TCDE. The program anficipates expending the remaining funds rather
quickly as school starts up again for the 2025-26 academic year and eligible students and
families get connected and/or reconnected to their services. To ensure that EHCY can
continue meeting these crucial needs of local students and their families experiencing
homelessness, program staff are requesting additional funds from Tehama CoC. This
particular use is not typically one eligible under any RFP or other funding solicitation that
the CoC releases, however, CoC staff has confirmed that the CoC has grant funds
available through the Anthem Blue Cross HHIP award adequate to support this request
and that Practical Supports for Homeless Students, to be provided by the local
department of education is an eligible use of these funds.

Motion: A motion was made to approve and adopt of the Regionally Coordinated
Homelessness Action Plan (Plan), which is a requirement of the Homeless Housing,
Assistance and Prevention Round é (HHAP-6) grant program, and to authorize the
Executive Council Chairperson to sign the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
between the County of Tehama, the Tehama County Continuum of Care, and The Vitality
Project, as the Administrative Entity for the Continuum of Care regarding the HHAP-6 grant
program.

Moved by: Gail Locke



Seconded by: Travis Lyon

Ayes: Kris Deiters, Johnna Jones, Colleen Lewis, Gail Locke, Travis Lyon, Pati Nolen, Honey
Touvell

Noes: None

Abstentions: None

Result: APPROVED

c. Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Program Update

Andrea provided a quick update on the upcoming RFP the CoC plans to release to select
service providers to award funds allocated to the CoC through HCD's 2024 ESG Notice of
Funding Availability (NOFA). Due to changes in the way the state is allocating and
administering ESG funds, considerably less funding is available to Tehama County providers
this year. At June's meeting, the Council discussed supplementing the ESG funds available
this year with HHAP-5 funds already awarded to Tehama CoC. Andrea reported that after
conducting an analysis on the overall CoC budget and existing obligations, it appears that
approximately $90K in HHAP-5 funds could be used for this purpose, which would allow the
CoC to award up to $300K total in Emergency Shelter grants through the ESG RFP.

7. Additional Discussion(s)

a. Mobilehome Park Rent Stabilization

Pati reported that the Tehama County Board of Supervisors has recently discussed a
suggestion that a county ordinance be established that limits the amount by which space
rent for households in mobilehome parks can be raised each year. State law already limits
the amount by which rent on other residential property can be raised each year, but
mobilehome space rent is not subject to the same restrictions. Some mobilehome residents
in Tehama County have recently seen their space rent increased to unaffordable levels.
This poses a significant challenge to these residents, as moving a mobilehome once it is
established in a park space is prohibitively expensive, leaving them stuck in an
unaffordable position and putting their ability o retain ownership of their mobilehome at
risk. A discussion took place through which Council members expressed concern about
the situation and potential outcomes, including increased homelessness in Tehama
County. The council provided direction fo staff to gather additional information on the
issue so that the CoC could consider submitting a letter supporting such an ordinance.

Meeling adjourned at 3:40 PM.

The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, September 10, 2025 at 1:30 PM and will be held via Zoom.



Project Start Date:  5/1/2024

Rural Indoor Objectives (RIO) Cumulative Report Report Date: 9/30/2025

Rural Indoor Objectives (RIO) is a collaborative project of providers in Tehama County funded through Round 3 of the State of California's Encampment Resolution Funding program.

RIO Participants Identified:

Adults 399 RIO Participants are identified through self-report of residing in one of the prioritized encampments on a Coordinated Entry Surveys and/or through
Street Outreach contact within the RIO project period.
Children* 39 [*Children expected to join RIO-participant parent(s)/caregiver(s) once housed are counted here. Not all children counted were residing with parent(s)/caregiver(s) in encampment(s).

People no longer
being fracked:; 35 Left Area: 28 No longer eligible: 0 6% of all RIO Participants identified are known to have left the area since project start.

Total 403 Deceased: 7 Other Reason: 0 2% of all RIO Participants identified are known to have died since since project start.

RIO Participants in Interim Housing:

Emergency Shelter 10 3.97% Interim ,‘jlous'ing mgdels proyfde femporcr'ry accomodations fz? indivic'ft.{ols experiencing homeless.nes's while they work on

— - of RIO Participants in addressing immediate barriers to accessing permanent housing. Individuals counted here were in either Emergency Shelter or
Transitional Housing ) Tt Heveig @ Transitional Housing as of the Report Date shown at top.
TO*Q' 1 6 Report Date.

*Denominator DOES NOT include persons who have left the area or are deceased.

RIO Participants in Permanent Housing:

Exited any HMIS project to a Permanent Housing Destination: 65 24.32%

: : : : of RIO Participants have Permanent housing is community-based, intended fo be long-
Housed through Rapid Rehousing, sfill enrolled (not yet exited) 33| een permanently housed | ferm (without a sef length of stay and subject fo a lease or
Total 98 as of Report Date. sublease agreement that can only be terminated for cause).

*Denominator DOES NOT include persons who have left the area or are deceased.

RIO Participants Indoors as of Report Date:

In Interim Housing In Permanent Housing Total Now Indoors 28.29%
16 98 114 of RIO Participants are Sleeping Indoors as of Report Date.*

*Denominator DOES NOT include persons who have left the area or are deceased.

RIO Participants in RRH "Housing Search":

ERF-funded RRH 14 Rapid Rehousing (RRH) is a service model that pairs direct financial assistance with housing move-in costs and short- to medium-term rental
assistance with intensive case management and service navigation services to assist households with achieving self-sufficiency in permanent

Other RRH program (5) housing. Individuals counted here are generally in the "housing search" phase of the program.

Total 23

RIO Participants Receiving One or More Services in Reporting Period (by Project Type):

Permanent
Day Shelter Emergency Shelter Supportive Rapid Rehousing Services Only Street Outreach Transitional Housing
Housing

Total 92.47%

(Unduplicated)
of RIO Participants Have Received One or

311 167 ] 100 37 131 38 405 More Services Since Project Start Date**

*Denominator DOES include persons who have left the area or are deceased.



FINANCIAL REPORT — October 2025
(Agenda ltem 5.q)

Tehama CoC Financial Report October 2025

As of September 30, 2025:

Open Funding Awards:

HUD
HHAP-2 | HHAP-3 | HHAP-4 | HHAP-5 PIc(::nc::i.:ng TCDE HHIP HHIP ESG ERF-3-R
(CoC) (Joint) (Joint) (Joint) (2023 (x4) (Anthem) (HealthNet) 2024
NOFO)
Ij\i:/iglrd $250,000 | $833,358 | $749,744 | $482,212 $50,000 $57,037 | $367,288 | $384,712 | $418,598 $14,103,947 $17,696,896
fg%‘iﬁged $237,552 | $750,042 | $667,697 | $193,803 | $48,563 $0 $105,581 | $312,320 $0 $3,753,950 | $6,069,507
i'ie/r\“v?;?g‘g $12,448 | $83316 | $82,047 | $288409 | $1,437 | $57,037 | $261,707 | $72,392 | $418,598 | $10,349,997 | $11,627,389
Expenditure 6/30/2026 6/30/2027 6/30/2027 6/30/2028 10/31/2025 N/A N/A N/A 7/15/2030 4/18/2028
Deadlines:
Anticipated Funding Awards: Do
Anticipated Amount $374,343 $374,343
Expenditure Deadlines: 6/30/2028
Open Subgrantee Agreements:
Status Project Total Award E);‘;:T)r:::gd ?:'2;";‘::? gxpenf,,tu,e
eadlines
In Contract PATH Plaza Development/Operations $1,313,130 $1,309,342 $3,788 6/30/2025
In Contract First Christian Church Corning $308,666 $128,177 $180,489 6/30/2025
In Contract PATH Street Outreach (Includes ERF Backfill) $298,839 $247,581 $51,258 6/30/2025
In Contract PATH Rapid Rehousing $245,131 $216,764 $28,367 6/30/2025
In Contract Housing Tools Systems Support - 2023-2027 $78.278 $70,860 $7,418 12/31/2027
To Be Awarded | TO BE AWARDED - NVCSS Deposit Assistance $80,000 $0 $80,000 TBD
In Contract Lutheran Social Services - Youth Housing $326,360 $59.876 $266,484 6/30/2028
In Contract City of Red BIluff - HLO (ERF) $369,392 $103,952 $265,440 4/1/2028
In Contract Empower Tehama Behavioral Health Services (ERF) $130,835 $34,977 $95,858 4/1/2028
In Contract Empower Tehama Victim Services (ERF) $619,165 $103,248 $515,917 4/1/2028
In Contract PATH Moving Forward (ERF) $1,784,577 $1,922 $1,782,655 | 4/1/2028
In Contract PATH Plaza Navigation Center (ERF) $4,993,990 $1,900,352 $3,093,638 | 4/1/2028
In Contract PATH Rapid Rehousing (ERF) $868,703 $112,631 $756,072 4/1/2028
In Contract Sale Transitional (ERF) $1,371,035 $705,998 $665,037 4/1/2028
In Contract PATH Street Outreach (ERF) $1,073,513 $323,027 $750,486 4/1/2028
Pre-Contract TCHSA Mobile Crisis Team (ERF) $262,198 $0 $262,198 4/1/2028
Pre-Contract | TCHSA Mobile Outreach (ERF) $107,361 $0 $107,361 4/1/2028
Pre-Contract | TCHSA PSH Supportive Services (ERF) $372,086 $0 $372,086 4/1/2028
Pre-Contract Pacific West Communities PSH Supportive Services (ERF) $800,000 $488 $799,513 4/1/2028
In Contract Housing Tools Project Coordination (ERF) $90,000 $25,716 $64,285 4/1/2028
Pre-Contract ESG+ RRH & ES Awards $457,500 $0 $457,500 12/31/2025
Total | $15,950,758 $5,344,910 | $10,605,848

Tehama County Continuum of Care Executive Council Meeting, October 8, 2025

Page 1



FINANCIAL REPORT — October 2025
(Agenda ltem 5.q)

CoC Coordination, Grant Administration and HMIS:

Expenditure
Deadlines

4/1/2028
4/1/2028
4/1/2028
10/31/2025
6/30/2028
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Total Expended Remainin
Budget to Date g
ERF Grant Administration, 2024-2027 $626,895 $169,539 $457,356
ERF HMIS, 2024-2027 $325,837 $138,974 $186,863
ERF Systems Support, 2024-2027 $138,183 $2,998 $135,186
HUD CoC Planning Activities $50,000 $49,483 $517
HHAP Grant Administration (HHAP-1/2/3/4/5) $212,120 $174,602 $37,518
HHIP HMIS $182,740 $115,512 $67,228
HHIP CoC Infrastructure/Coordination $422,592 $169,764 $252,828
Lived Experience Engagement (LEE) $16,000 $11,551 $4,449
Set up for Success Program (Household establishment for PSH) $3,500 $639 $2,861
Vehicle Assistance Pilot Program $15,000 $12,111 $2,889
Promoting Equity (Anthem HHIP) $2,000 $595 $1,405
Total | $1,994,868 | $845,767 $1,149,100
Summary:
As of September 30, 2025:
Current Anticipated

Funds Available
(Grant funds awarded to Tehama CoC but not yet expended) 511,627,389 $374,343 $12,001,732
Funds Committed
(Grant funds committed/sub-awarded to local projects, not yet expended) 511,627,389 $127,559 $11.754,948
Balance
(Grant funds awarded to Tehama CoC but not yet committed/sub-awarded to local projects) $0 $246'784 5246'784

Tehama County Continuum of Care Executive Council Meeting, October 8, 2025

Page 2



STAFF REPORT:
2025 Tehama ESG+ RFP Awards Review (Agenda ltem 6.b)

2025 Tehama ESG+ RFP Awards Review

Informational Presentation:

On August 22, 2025, Tehama CoC announced the availability up to $450,000 in grant
funds to address homelessness in Tehama County through the 2025 Tehama Emergency
Solutions Grant Plus (ESG+) Request for Proposals (RFP). Qualified service providers were
invited to submit proposals for eligible projects on or before September 19, 2025. Eligible
activities were limited to Emergency Shelter (ES) and Rapid Rehousing (RRH), as defined
by the federal Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Program and the California ESG
Program, as well as relevant laws and regulations.

Applicants were permitted to request up to a maximum of $150,000 to support ES or
RRH per proposal submitted. Victim Service Providers (VSPs) proposing projects to
exclusively serve victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, and/or human trafficking
who are experiencing homelessness due to victimization were permitted to request
additional funds in an amount up to 5% of their primary funding request to support the
cost of operating a HUD-approved, HMIS-comparable database. (Funds to fulfil
requests made under this special provision are separate from the $450,000 made
available to support ES and/or RRH activities.) Per originating funder requirements,
Tehama CoC was required to award at least $150,000.00 of the available funds to one
or more RRH projects.

Tehama CoC received four qualified Proposals — two for Emergency Shelter and two for
Rapid Rehousing — requesting a combined total of $600,000.00 in ES/RRH funding and
$7,500 to support a VSP HMIS-comparable database.

CoC staff conducted Minimum Qualifications Reviews on the submitted proposals and
determined that all four were eligible fo move on to Rating and Ranking process.

On October 1, 2025, the Tehama CoC Rating and Ranking Committee met and
reviewed the four proposals. Scores were assigned by committee consensus, according
to a standardized process consistent with the Scoring Matrix provided in the RFP.
Proposals were scored according to eligible activity, with projects of the same eligible
activity type ranked against one another. Final scoring and ranking informed the Rating
and Ranking Committee’s decisions regarding awards and award levels, which are as
follows:

Emergency Shelter Funds Conditionally Awarded:

Applicant Project Rank | Funds Requested | Conditional Award

DV Emergency

Coalition (PATH)

Shelter 2025-2026

Empower Tehama Shelter 1 $150,000.00 $150,000.00
Poor and the Homeless | PATH Plaza
Tehama County Emergency 2 $150,000.00 $150,000.00

Tehama County Continuum of Care Executive Council Meeting, August 13, 2025




STAFF REPORT:
2025 Tehama ESG+ RFP Awards Review (Agenda ltem 6.b)

Rapid Rehousing Funds Conditionally Awarded:

Applicant Project Rank Funds Requested Conditional Award

Poor and the Homeless PATH Rapid

Tehama County Rehousin 1 $150,000.00 $100,000.00
Coalition (PATH) 9

Ministerial Association of

Cadlifornia Counties TehamaReHome 2 $150,000.00 $50,000.00
(MACC)

As a quadlified VSP, Empower Tehama'’s project, “Empower Tehama Domestic Violence
Emergency Shelter” has also been conditionally awarded an additional $7,500.00 to
support the cost of operating an HMIS-comparable database.

Based on the decisions of the Rating and Ranking Committee, CoC staff notified
applicants of their conditional awards on Friday, October 3, 2025. Applicants will be
required submit and receive approval on a project budget and may be required to
meet additional special conditions prior to contract execution.

Financial Impact:

Awards made through the 2025 ESG+ RVP evaluation process will be supported funds
made available to Tehama CoC through the 2024 Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)
NOFA and/or the Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) program, both
of which are administered by the California Department of Housing and Community
Development (HCD). Funds from each source will be allocated to awards based on a
number of factors, including requirements and limitations imposed by originating
funding programes.

Tehama County Continuum of Care Executive Council Meeting, August 13, 2025



